ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 4, 2016

5:30 p. m
MEMBERS PRESENT
Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns
Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MGQuire
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 128

"An Act relating to the Alaska permanent fund; relating to
appropriations to the dividend fund; relating to income of the
Al aska permanent fund; relating to the earnings reserve account;
relating to the Alaska permanent fund dividend; maki ng
conform ng anendnents; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 128

SHORT TI TLE: PERM FUND: DEPCSI TS; DI VI DEND; EARNI NGS
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 19/ 16 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 16 (S) STA, FIN

01/ 26/ 16 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
01/ 26/ 16 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 26/ 16 (S) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 28/ 16 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
01/ 28/ 16 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 28/ 16 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 02/ 16 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 02/ 16 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 02/ 16 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 04/ 16 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 4, 2016



02/ 04/ 16 (S) STA AT 5:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
W TNESS REG STER

DAVE HANSON, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 128.

CHARLES MCKEE, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Did not provide a position on SB 128.

M CHAEL CHAMBERS, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

LAURA BONNER, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

JOSEPH JAMES, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

KURT AUTOR, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

TOM LAKCSH, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

SHAWN WARNER, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

RAY KRElI G representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

LAUREN BLANCHETT, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 128.

DAVI D BOYLE, representing hinself

Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 4, 2016



DAN ZANTEK, representing hinself

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 128 with a
provi so.

CHUCK STI ELSTRA, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 128.

BERNI E KARL, representing hinself
Chena Hot Springs, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 128.

PAMELA GOODE, representing herself
Del t ana, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

JAMES SQUYRES, representing hinself
Del t ana, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

ED MARTIN JR , representing hinself
Cooper Landi ng, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

EDWARD W TBECK, representing hinself
Kenai, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

PETER PROBASCO, representing hinself
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

JI M SYKES, representing hinself

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 128, wth
changes.

GARVAN BUCARI A, representing hinself
Wasill a, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

DAVE GLENN, representing hinself

Wasi |l a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 4, 2016



LARRY DEVI LBI SS, representing hinself
Wasill a, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

M KE SWANSON, representing hinself
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

EARL LACKEY, representing hinself
Wasi |l a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

STEVE ST. CLAIR, representing hinself
Wasi |l a, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

BETH FREAD, representing herself
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

CI NDY BETTI NE, representing herself
Bi g Lake, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Did not provide a positi

M KE COONS, representing hinself
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

DONALD WESTLUND, representing hinself
Ket chi kan, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

HANNAH RAM NSKEY, representing herself
Ket chi kan, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

KEVI N MOTO, representing hinself
Deering, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

BARRY WAGGONER, representing hinself
Copper Center, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

GLENESE PETTEY, representing herself

Kenai, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4-

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

on

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

128.

128.

128.

128.

128.

SB 128.

128.

128.

128.

128.

128.

128.

February 4, 2016



BROTHER TOM PATMOR, representing hinsel f
Cl am @ul ch, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

FRED STURMAN, representing hinself
Kenai, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

Bl LL WARREN, representing hinself
Ni ki ski, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

GECRCE PI ERCE, representing hinself
Kasi | of, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

GLENN HERMANN, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

EARL FI SK, representing hinself
Kenai, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

DI ANNE MACRAE, representing herself
Kenai, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

J. R BOBECK, representing hinself
Kenai, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

KEN FARAND, representing hinself
Val dez, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

JI M HOTAI WLLIAMS, representing hinself
Val dez, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

ALAN CRUME, representing hinself
Val dez, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in oppositi

MARY NANUWAK, representing herself
Bet hel , Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5-

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

128.

128.

128.

128.

128.

128.

128.

128.

128.

128.

128.

February 4, 2016



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Did not provide a position on SB 128.

M KE MCCARTHY, representing hinself
Homer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

DAN SULLI VAN, representing hinself
Pet er sburg, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 128.

DAVE GLADDEN, representing hinself
DI l'i ngham Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

MATT DONOCHCE, representing hinself
Sitka, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

BARRY SOLIE, representing hinself
Kenai, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

BERT SHARP, representing hinself
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

GERALD WHI TTON, representing hinself
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

LUKE HOPKI NS, representing hinself
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of SB 128.

JEAN JAMES, representing herself
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of SB 128.

WLL FINLEY, representing hinself
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

CEEZAR MARTI NSON, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

BAERENT STRANDBERG, representing hinself

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 4, 2016



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

CARL BERCER, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 128.

GEORGE GRI FFI NG, representing hinself
Kodi ak, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 128.

NI CK SZABO, representing hinself
Kodi ak, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 128.

JAKE JACOBSEN, representing hinself
Kodi ak, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

ALEXANDER HOKE, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

MARTI N STEPETIN SR, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 128 wth

nmodi fi cati ons.

ERI N HARRI NGTQN, representing herself

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 128 wth
nodi fi cati ons.

Bl LL TREMBLAY, representing hinself
Pet er sburg, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 128.

KENNY BI NGAMEN, representing hinself
Sol dot na, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

NANCY HI LLSTRAND, representing herself
Kachemak Bay, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

GECRCE SM TH, representing hinsel f
Anchor age, Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 4, 2016



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of

DENNY KAY WEATHERS,

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of

representing herself
Hawki ns | sl and-Prince WIlIlians Sound, Al aska

DONNA ENDRESEN, representing herself

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of

ROSS MULLINS, representing hinself

Cordova, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

CAROLYN DALI LAK, representing herself

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Did not provide a position

MELANI E GLATT, representing herself

Pal ner, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Did not provide a position

TI M BUCKMAN, representing hinself

Houst on, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of

DON SKI NNER, representing hinself

Kenai, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in on opposition

MARK W GGE N, representing hinself

Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON  STATEMENT:
nodi fications.

Testified

in

DONALD JOHNSON, representing hinsel f

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of

CRAI G DOUGLAS, representing hinself

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Did not provide a position

JOHN TACKETT, representing hinself

Wasi |l | a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of

SENATE STA COW TTEE

support

SB

SB

SB

128.

128.

128.

128.

SB

of

SB

SB

SB 128.

SB 128.

128.

SB 128.

SB 128 wth

128.

SB 128.

128.

February 4, 2016



JOHN STRASENBURGH, representing hinsel f
Tal keet na, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Did not provide a position on SB 128.

ROGER COPE, representing hinself
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

SHELLY FI NKLER, representing herself
Eagl e River, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

ANDREE MCLEACD, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

MARY BI SHOP, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

BILL SEITZ, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 128.

MERRI CK PI ERCE, representing hinself
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Did not provide a position on SB 128.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
5:30: 15 PM
CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 5:30 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill, Huggins, and Chair Stoltze.

SB 128- PERM FUND: DEPGCSI TS; Dl VI DEND;, EARNI NGS

5:30: 26 PM

CHAIR STOLTZE announced the consideration of SB 128. He
explained that the commttee would hear public testinony on the
governor's Permanent Fund dividend bill, part of his approach to
the state's fiscal gap. He noted that Conm ssioner Hoffbeck from
t he Departnent of Revenue was in attendance.

5:32:31 PM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 4, 2016



DAVE HANSON, representing hinself, Anchorage, Alaska, testified
in support of SB 128. He qualified that his support assunes that
reasonabl e budget cuts will be made. He asserted that the state
can live with a capped dividend and action nust take place
i nedi at el y.

5:33:13 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOAEKI j oi ned the conmttee neeting.

5:35:36 PM

CHARLES MCKEE, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, did not
provide a position on SB 128. He offered recomendations on
addressing the state's budget deficit.

5:39:14 PM

M CHAEL CHAMBERS, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska
testified in opposition of SB 128. He specified that the bil
was an assault on the private sector in order to mamintain and
grow the public sector

5:39: 26 PM

LAURA BONNER, representing herself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. She stated that the Permanent Fund
di vidend was inportant to Al aska's econony. She specified that
t he Constitutional Budget Reserve Fund and the earnings fromthe
Per manent Fund should not be rolled into the Permanent Fund's
principal. She opined that paying dividends on royalties does
not allow Al askans to be beneficiaries fromthe Permanent Fund's
investment gains and noted that reduced oil production would
lower dividends tied to royalties. She conceded that the
Legislature nmust ultimately use part of the earnings reserve and
new sources of revenues to close the budget gap. She set forth
that the Legislature nust act this year.

5:41: 27 PM

JOSEPH JAMES, representing hinself, Anchorage, Alaska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He renmarked that world events could
affect oil prices wthout notice. He recomended that a
provi sion be included that addressed oil price changes.

5:43: 02 PM
KURT AUTOR, representing hinself, Anchorage, Alaska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He stated that his primary concern is

the bill does not have sunset provisions that takes into account
changes in circunstances. He remarked that transferring the
Per manent Fund  earni ngs into general revenue with no

accountability violates the purpose and intent of the fund. He

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 4, 2016



noted that Al askans have repeatedly voted against previous
attenpts to change the Permanent Fund. He set forth that
constitutional protections need to be put into place that
reinforce the citizen ownership of the state's natural resource
weal t h.

5:45: 25 PM

TOM LAKOSH, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He asserted that SB 128 was
unconstitutional and noney should not be spent on constitutional
litigation. He recommended that personal and corporate incone
taxes be considered. He said changes to the Pernmanent Fund
di vidend would be the npbst regressive tax that could be inposed
on Al askans.

5:47.:49 PM

SHAWN WARNER, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He stated that the Pernmanent Fund
di vidend hel ps many people and hopes that the governnment does
not use the fund.

5:48: 38 PM

RAY KREI G representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He said the Permanent Fund dividend was
income to a broad-based sector in Alaska and a primary econom c
driver. He asserted that taking 50 to 60 percent of the dividend
away from famlies and individuals was an extremely regressive
nmove. He said the state's budget would be bal anced on the backs
of ordinary people. He explained that he was not in favor of an
incone tax at the current tine. He set forth that a sustainable
state budget should be based on a reasonable per-barrel figure,
approxi mately $40 per barrel. He asserted that spending cuts
nmust be made before changes are made to the dividend.

5:50:41 PM
LAUREN BLANCHETT, representing herself, Anchorage, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 128. She asserted that using the
Permanent Fund was one of the tools available to fund state
gover nnent .

5:52: 02 PM

DAVI D BOYLE, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He stated that budget cuts should occur
before cuts are nmade to the Permanent Fund dividend. He asserted
that the dividend hel ps | owincone Al askans.

5:53: 59 PM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- February 4, 2016



DAN ZANTEK, representing hinmself, Anchorage, Alaska, testified
in support of SB 128 wth a caveat. He asked that the
Legi slature do sonething during the current session. He said he
favored using a portion of Permanent Fund earnings so that the
di vidends nmay be sustained. He remarked that Governor Hanmond
first proposed that the Permanent Fund be used as a rainy-day
fund and the rainy day has arrived for the state.

5:54: 59 PM

CHUCK  STI ELSTRA, representing hinself, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 128. He said he supports the
governor's mxed approach in tackling the state's deficit by
cutting expenditures and spreading out the pain through a
variety of taxes. He suggested that a sales tax be included. He
asserted that the Permanent Fund dividend was public noney that
shoul d be used for public purposes before taxation.

5:57:11 PM
BERNI E KARL, representing hinself, Chena Hot Springs, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 128. He stated, "No sinple solutions,

only intelligent choices.”" He set forth that |egislators have
the toughest job of anybody in the history of Alaska to figure
things out, but naking no decision will harm the state. He

recommended that nore cuts be nmade as well as instituting an
incone tax and sal es tax.

6: 00: 25 PM

PAMELA GOODE, representing herself, Deltana, Alaska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. She asserted that the bill "hands over
the keys" to the state's multi-billion dollar |ockbox that

bel ongs to the people. She asserted that the Permanent Fund was
set up to keep the hands of the politicians and special-
interests out of it. She pointed out that rather than providing
an increasing Permanent Fund dividend, Al askans would receive a
di vidend from a decreasing petroleumroyalty's fund.

6: 01: 59 PM

JAMES SQUYRES, representing hinmself, Deltana, Al aska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He asserted that decreasing the size of
government should be considered prior to addressing revenue and
Per manent Fund proposals.

6: 03: 49 PM

ED MARTIN JR, representing hinself, Cooper Landing, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. He asked that the Permanent
Fund di vidend not be touched. He suggested that earnings be used
fromthe sale of |and to Al askans.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- February 4, 2016



6:08: 21 PM

EDWARD W TBECK, representing hinself, Kenai, Alaska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He recommended that the Permanent Fund
not be touched, incentives to oil conpanies elimnated, and
| egi sl ative corruption addressed.

6:10: 22 PM
PETER PROBASCO, representing hinself, Palnmer, Alaska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He said the bill was premature and an

effort to do away with the Permanent Fund. He asserted that
changes to the Pernmanent Fund shoul d be decided by a vote of the
people. He stated that he was in favor of zero-based budgeting.

6:11: 07 PM

JIM SYKES, representing hinself, Palmer, Alaska, testified in
support of SB 128 with changes. He said the state has a short
term and a long-term problem He remarked that changes to the
Permanent Fund require concrete and bulletproof sideboards to
make sure the Permanent Fund is permanent. He said the full
di vidend needs to be paid so that the nobney can work its way
t hrough the Al aska econony. He recomended that a sunset clause
be added for when the oil market returns to normal tines. He
suggested that a gasoline tax be considered as well.

6:13: 48 PM

GARVAN BUCARI A, representing hinmself, Wasilla, Al aska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He asked that state governnent be cut,
the Permanent Fund protected and sustained, capital spending
el i mnated, and changes to the Permanent Fund should be voted on
by Al askans. He pointed out that sovereign-wealth funds in many
countri es have been exhaust ed.

6:15: 52 PM

DAVE GLENN, representing hinmself, Wasilla, Al aska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He declared that current financial
conditions in the state calls for sacrifice by all Al askans. He
suggested that the Permanent Fund be cashed out where the state
retains half and the other half is paid out to citizens.

6: 18: 26 PM

LARRY  DEVI LBI SS, representing hi msel f, Wasi | | a, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. He explained that the
Permanent Fund has had a positive economc inpact on his
business. He asked that commttee nenbers keep in mnd the
impact that the dividend has on |ocal econonies. He remarked
that the Permanent Fund was set up as a renewable resource. He

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- February 4, 2016



set forth that in order to be sustainable, the cost of
government must be reduced and everyone has to live within the
earni ngs potential of the Permanent Fund.

6:19: 58 PM

M KE SWANSON, representing hinmself, Palnmer, Al aska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He comended Governor Walker for his
efforts to address Alaska's fiscal crisis. He opined that
reconstituting and artificially capping the Permanent Fund
dividend is not an appropriate solution. He declared that using
the Permanent Fund's earnings reserve is the nobst sustainable
way to bal ance the state budget. He conceded that there will be
times when dividends are negatively inpacted, but Al askans
should be able to share in the prosperity of the fund in tines
of plenty without restriction. He remarked that he is willing to
pay added taxes and a portion of the dividend if governnent
spending is scaled back to a sustainable |evel.

6: 22: 33 PM

EARL LACKEY, representing hinself, Wasilla, Alaska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He asserted that capping the Permanent
Fund dividend was a negative for the state. He suggested that
government costs be cut, the Permanent Fund earnings be tapped
and a sales tax be instituted.

6:24: 10 PM

STEVE ST. CLAI R, representing hinself, Wasi | | a, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. He said there was sone
m sinformation on the Permanent Fund and suggested that nore
education be provided to Al askans. He remarked that the governor
should not be allowed to use his position as a platformto spend
Al askans' noney on pushing his bill. He noted that Al askans are
not allowed to drill for oil or mnerals in their backyard and
the Permanent Fund acts as conpensation. He summarized that SB
128 was a pernmanent solution to a tenporary problem

6: 26: 57 PM

BETH FREAD, representing herself, Palmer, Alaska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. She stated that any consideration in
spending from the Permanent Fund should only happen after
government spending cuts are nade. She said the Permanent Fund
di vidend should not be elimnated and noted the dividend' s
positive econom c inpact in the state.

6:29:19 PM
CI NDY BETTINE, representing herself, Big Lake, Al aska, did not
provide a position on SB 128. She said she is not opposed to

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- February 4, 2016



using the Permanent Fund dividend to help soften the blow to
Al aska's econony. She remarked that she did not know if SB 128
was perfect or exactly the way it should be. She noted that
sunset clauses were suggested as a hope that Al aska's econony
i nproves. She summarized that SB 128 should be worked on and
i nproved with the public's input.

6: 31: 08 PM

M KE COONS, representing hinself, Palnmer, Alaska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He asserted that Governor Wl ker wants to
cut the state's budget by a small anpbunt and increase governnment
spending through increased taxation. He suggested that the
Per manent Fund earnings reserve be used as intended by Governor
Harmond.

6: 33: 45 PM

DONALD  VEESTLUND, representing hinself, Ket chi kan, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. He said he supports the
concept of SB 128, but does not support an inconme tax where
money from dividends is paid back to the state. He suggested
that Permanent Fund dividends not be issued for two to four
years and all earnings placed into a sovereign wealth fund. He
recommended that a sunset clause be included and governnent
spendi ng | ower ed.

6: 35: 31 PM

HANNAH RAM NSKEY, representing herself, Ket chi kan, Al aska
testified in opposition of SB 128. She asserted that state
government continues to grow at unchecked | evels. She asked that
the state-enployee plan to wuse Permanent Fund earnings to
operate the governnent be assessed by the non-political
Per manent Fund investors as to what is sustainable.

6:38:11 PM

KEVIN MOTO, representing hinself, Deering, Al aska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He remarked that the Pernmanent Fund
di vidend contributes to rural Al aska's econony. He asserted that
reduci ng the Permanent Fund dividend will create a bigger rural-
ur ban divi de.

6: 39: 28 PM

BARRY WAGGONER, representing hinself, Copper Center, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. He said he did not agree with
taking funds from the Permanent Fund. He asserted that the
government nust live within a budget. He remarked that a sales
tax shoul d be all-inclusive.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 4, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZE acknow edged Dar wi n Pet er son, Legi sl ative
Director, for being in attendance at the comm ttee neeting.

6:41: 06 PM

GLENESE PETTEY, representing herself, Kenai, Al aska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. She said private-property owners do not
have mineral or oil rights and the Permanent Fund is an exchange
for the rights that were taken away. She asked that governnment
cuts be taken into serious consideration and insisted that state
government live within a budget. She pointed out that the bil
does not take into consideration when Al aska's econony goes back

up.

6:42: 55 PM

BROTHER TOM PATMOR, representing hinself, Cam Gulch, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. He suggested that the
Per manent Fund | oan noney to state governnment. He asserted that
a separate loan fund could be created where the state sells its
real estate holdings, stocks, and generates added revenue from
mari j uana sal es.

6: 44: 38 PM

FRED STURMAN, representing hinself, Kenai, Al aska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He said state governnment needs to spend
nore tinme figuring out how to cut spending.

6: 46: 44 PM

Bl LL WARREN, representing hinself, N kiski, Al aska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He remarked that he is not for using the
Permanent Fund dividend. He said state governnent spending
shoul d be cut, an inconme tax instituted and the gas line built.

6: 49: 07 PM
CEORGE PIERCE, representing hinself, Kasilof, Al aska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He asserted that his Permanent Fund

dividend should not be touched by state governnent. He
recommended that the Pernmanent Fund not be used to bail out
| egi sl ators, spending should be cut and an incone tax
i nstituted.
6:51: 55 PM

GLENN  HERMANN, representing hi msel f, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. He asserted that spending
from the Permanent Fund is a tenporary fix and will not solve
anything. He stated that the size of state governnent nust be
reduced.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- February 4, 2016



6: 54: 29 PM

EARL FISK, representing hinself, Kenai, Al aska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He remarked that the Permanent Fund was
set up for the people and not the governnment. He reconmended
t hat state governnent reduce spendi ng.

6: 56: 09 PM
DI ANNE MACRAE, representing herself, Kenai, Al aska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. She said the noney from the Pernmanent Fund
dividend is due to Alaskans as conpensation for taking away
rights to property. She recommended that the state's budget be
cut first.

6:57:59 PM

J. R BOBECK, representing hinself, Kenai, Al aska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He said his famly uses the Permanent Fund
dividend to assist with paying bills. He asked that governnent
[imt spending and live within a budget.

6: 59: 50 PM

KEN FARAND, representing hinself, Valdez, Alaska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He suggested that the Pernmanent Fund be
cashed out to residents or provide for people to donate $150 to
the government rather than taking noney from people. He said he
does not want anyone touching his dividend. He stated that he
appreciates his dividend and usually spends it in Al aska.

7:01: 25 PM

JIM HOTAI WLLIAMS, representing hinmself, Valdez, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. He said the Permanent Fund is
owned by the citizens of Alaska. He stated that Governor Hamond
devised the Permanent Fund to keep the governnment away from
spending it. He suggested that state governnent spending be cut.

7:03:12 PM

ALAN CRUME, representing hinself, Valdez, Alaska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He asserted that grabbing the Permanent
Fund is just opening up a bank account for state governnent. He
recomended that state governnent take a vow to cut costs.

7:08: 20 PM
MARY NANUWAK, representing herself, Bethel, Al aska, did not
provi de a position on SB 128.

7:09:31 PM
M KE MCCARTHY, representing hinself, Honer, Al aska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He said the bill is the wong first step

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- February 4, 2016



in resolving the state's budget crisis. He said every Al askan
needs "skin in the gane” and suggested that an incone tax be the
first step. He noted that taking the Permanent Fund dividend
away only affects residents whereas an income tax would include
non-resident wage earners. He opined that the Permanent Fund
dividend provides fixed-incone retirees, disables and bush-
Al askans with a security cushion to pay their bills. He asked
that governnent cut spending and noted that term nating nega-
projects would save the state $7.66 billion. He suggested that
the business and admnistrative functions of rural school
districts be consolidated, but schools should not be closed.

7:12:41 PM

DAN  SULLI VAN, representing hi msel f, Pet er sbur g, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 128. He said the state needs multiple
solutions to solve its crisis and cannot cut its way out w thout
havi ng devastating effects on the econony. He suggested that a

nodest inconme tax be instituted to support services. He
summari zed that he supports using part of the Permanent Fund for
state government as well as allowing residents to receive a

partial check.

7:13:55 PM

DAVE  GLADDEN, representing hi msel f, D |'1'i ngham Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. He said Governor Hamond set
up the Permanent Fund as the people's resource that needed to be
permanent|ly protected. He suggested that government cut spending
and a capped-incone tax be instituted.

7:16: 09 PM

MATT DONOHOE, representing hinself, Sitka, Al aska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He said the Permanent Fund dividend has
becone an inportant economc engine for Alaska, especially in
rural Al aska. He remarked that the Permanent Fund was created to
ensure residents had a vested interest in what happens to the
noney and to protect the noney from legislative raids. He said
the rural conmmunities run on local-sales taxes and adding a
stat e-sal es tax woul d be devastati ng.

7:21: 30 PM

BARRY SCLIE, representing hinself, Kenai, Alaska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He said he favors balancing the budget
t hrough spending cuts before taxation consideration. He asserted
that wusing the Permanent Fund dividend was one of the nost
regressi ve taxes inmagi nabl e.

7:21: 56 PM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 4, 2016



BERT SHARP, representing hinmself, Fairbanks, Alaska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He said he does not support the
governor's plan to dedicate funds from the Permanent Fund to
support state governnent in perpetuity and the dividend would be
i n danger of going away.

7.:25:15 PM

GERALD  WHI TTON, representing hinself, Fai r banks, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. He reconmmended that the
dividend be reduced to $1,000 or less, a state incone tax
reinstated, a luxury tax on large purchases instituted, fuel
taxes raised and a commttee of experts formed to provide
sol uti ons.

7:28:36 PM
LUKE HOPKINS, representing hinself, Fairbanks, Al aska, testified
in favor of SB 128. He set forth that the governor's bill is a

set of strong tools that keeps the state's econony running al ong
wi th keeping jobs.

7:30: 53 PM

JEAN JAMES, representing herself, Fairbanks, Al aska, testified
in favor of SB 128. She said positive action nmust occur during
the session. She remarked that the fiscal gap would not be
covered even if the entire state budget was cut. She stated that
she supported a state-incone tax as well, especially by having
non-residents contri bute.

7:33: 14 PM

WLL FINLEY, representing hinself, Fairbanks, Al aska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He noted that the Legislature
squandered funds when it did not use an $8 billion surplus to
fund the state's unfunded liabilities. He said the Permanent
Fund is the people's noney and the governnent should not have
access to the fund. He asserted that there is no need for
addi tional taxes and the Legislature should not plan its budgets
on $100 per barrel of oil.

7:36: 09 PM

CEEZAR MARTI NSQON, representing hinmself, Anchorage, Al aska
testified in opposition of SB 128. He said he opposes tanpering
with the Permanent Fund dividend. He opined that the Pernmanent
Fund dividend is a critical conponent of the Al aska econony in
terms of the support it provides to businesses and famlies. He
suggested that the state nove towards zero-based budgeting and
not target the Pernmanent Fund dividend. He asserted that the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- February 4, 2016



adm nistration was wasting public funds in selling their plan to
Al askans.

7:39:49 PM

BAERENT STRANDBERG representing hinmself, Anchorage, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. He suggested that governnent
spendi ng be cut.

7:43. 46 PM

CARL BERCER, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 128. He comrended the governor for introducing
SB 128 as a starting point and urged the Legislature to act
during the session. He renarked that the Permanent Fund divi dend
be continued at a $1,000 maxi num |l evel in order to help a |ot of
rural residents who depend on the dividend. He suggested that
spendi ng be cut, fuel tax increased, incone tax reinstated and
out of state workers taxed. He opined that an inconme tax would
put people's "skin in the gane" to specifically address nega-
proj ects.

7.46: 42 PM

CGECRCE GRIFFING representing hinsel f, Kodiak, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 128. He asserted that the governor has done his
homewor k and made conprehensive proposals that would go a |ong
way in diversifying the state's financial plan.

7:49: 26 PM

Nl CK SZABO, representing hinmself, Kodiak, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 128. He said the governor's proposal would bring
stability to the state's budget. He remarked that the state's
budget could not be balanced even if all state services were
cut. He asserted that additional revenue sources be instituted
via incone and sales taxes. He said sonmething has to be done
during the current session.

7:50: 52 PM

JAKE JACOBSEN, representing hinself, Kodiak, Alaska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He said he does not support changes to
the current Permanent Fund dividend system He stated that he

favors a drastic reduction in the size of governnent,
instituting sales and inconme taxes, and revising natura
resource taxes that targets oil, mning, tourism and fishing.

He suggested that effective ethics rules be established to stop
unrestrai ned governnment spendi ng.

7:53:41 PM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 4, 2016



ALEXANDER HOKE, representing hinself, Juneau, Al aska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He asserted that Governor Hamond's
vision was to share a portion of wealth with present and future
Al askans. He said the governor's plan creates an al nost direct
pipeline form Permanent Fund earnings right into governnent
coffers wi thout accountability to citizens. He recommended that
taxes be instituted and the governnent's size cut. He conceded
t hat Permanent Fund earnings will have to be used to help the
state solve the fiscal problem

7:57:13 PM

MARTIN STEPETIN SR., representing hinself, Juneau, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 128 with nodifications. He asserted
that the state has no choice but to use the Permanent Fund and
to institute taxation. He wurged that the Legislature do
sonmething every day to solve the state's fiscal problem He
noted that he does not support a gas tax due to the state's high
fuel prices and suggested that non-resident workers pay incone
t axes.

7:59:57 PM

ERI N HARRI NGTON, representing herself, Kodiak, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 128 with nodifications. She pointed out that
prior testinony indicates that a knowl edge gap exists between a
nunber of citizens and the |egislators. She said the governor's
bill was a starting point and asked that the Legislature act
during the current session. She expressed that she appreciates
the calls for cuts and noted that she sees places for efficiency
in government, but asserted that taking action to stabilize the
state's revenue sources is the first step. She said instituting
an incone tax would put "skin in the gane”" with legislators on
spendi ng.

8. 02: 50 PM

BILL TREMBLAY, representing hinself, Pet er sbur g, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 128. He asked that |egislators act
during the current session. He said cutting governnent spending
should be judicious where attention is paid to essential
services and the basic support needed to function properly. He
recommended that an income tax be instituted first, especially
to tax non-resident workers. He remarked that he does not
support a state-sales tax and noted the additional <cost to
| ocal -sales taxes that are already in place. He noted that a
study showed a nmajority of people would prefer to pay a state-
sales tax first. He added that 56 percent of residents do not
pay a | ocal -sal es tax.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- February 4, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZE pointed out that there are conmunities that pay
their way through property taxes pretty heavily too.

MR. TREMBLAY replied that Petersburg has a 6 percent sales tax
and an 11-m || property tax.

CHAI R STOLTZE asserted that Anchorage and Mat-Su pay their way
t hrough property taxes.

8:06: 23 PM

KENNY Bl NGAMEN, representing hi nsel f, Sol dot na, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. He pointed out that the state
spends over $16,000 per resident and the average per capita
spending in the Lower 48 was $5,300 per resident. He asserted
that the Permanent Fund dividend was established to be kept for
Al askans. He suggested that an incone tax be strictly assessed
on non-resident workers and a Permanent Fund cash out for
residents be considered. He pointed out that previous testinony
was approxi mately 85 percent against SB 128.

8:09:43 PM

NANCY HI LLSTRAND, representing herself, Kachemak Bay, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. She asked that the current
financial crisis be used by the state to "tighten its belt." She
remarked that she worried about wusing the Permanent Fund to
support governnent due to accountability issues. She suggested
that spending be cut and to change to an econony that is based
on taxation and spendi ng.

8:12:21 PM

CEORGE SM TH, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He asked that the Permanent Fund
di vi dend not be touched and new taxes not be instituted. He said
state governnent has to learn howto live within a budget.

8:13: 28 PM

DENNY KAY WEATHERS, representing herself, Hawkins Island-Prince
Wl lians Sound, Alaska, testified in opposition of SB 128. She
noted that during low oil prices in 1999, a simlar attenpt was
made by state governnent to use the Permanent Fund earnings and
approximately 84 percent of Al askans voted "no." She said the
current fiscal problemwas due to overspendi ng.

8:16: 21 PM

DONNA  ENDRESEN, representing hersel f, Sol dot na, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. She said the state's budget
and spending nust be cut. She specified that the Permanent Fund

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- February 4, 2016



should not be touched. She suggested that any reserves used by
the Legislature be treated as a loan that is paid back in 3 to 5
years. She asserted that a sales tax would not work for
residents that live in boroughs that already have a sal es tax.
She stated that she also opposes an inconme tax due to the
Legi sl ature's unaccount abl e spendi ng.

8:18: 54 PM

ROSS MULLINS, representing hinself, Cordova, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 128. He asserted that the proposed sovereign-
wealth fund plan by Governor Walker is the only way to resolve
the budget crisis wthout subjecting Al askans to unnecessary
pain. He conceded that cuts are inportant and the budget should
be trimred to the maxi mum extent that is reasonably possible. He
asked that legislators rise above the narrow self-interest that
is often displayed in testinony of those who absolutely do not
want the Permanent Fund dividend cut. He noted testinony at a
previous neeting from an expert on sovereign-wealth funds who
poi nted out that Al aska had the best opportunity to utilize the
Per manent Fund as proposed in SB 128 to help support the state
and its people. He noted that the plan proposed in SB 128 woul d
automatically keep the constraints on governnent spending in
both good tines and bad. He conceded that Al askans' future
expectations for the Permanent Fund dividend have to be
di m nished due to wunsustainability from the current budget
crisis. He noted that he supports an inconme tax as opposed to a
sal es tax. He opined that a sales tax is regressive,
particularly for those who Ilive in rural communities that
al ready have sal es taxes.

8:21:55 PM

CAROLYN DALILAK, representing herself, Anchorage, Al aska, did
not provide a position on SB 128. She said she uses the
Permanent Fund dividend to pay for her famly's bills. She
stated that she does not support additional taxes.

8:25: 32 PM

MELANI E GLATT, representing herself, Palnmer, Alaska, did not
provide a position on SB 128. She recommended that governnent
cut spending. She suggested that part of the Permanent Fund
earnings be used for the state budget, but specified that the
dividend continue to be inflation-proofed and the fund's corpus
be left alone. She said she does not favor an incone tax on
Al askans, but suggested that non-resident workers be taxed. She
asserted that consideration for a sales tax nust enconpass
everyone. She suggested that the federal governnment pay an
acreage rent on |ocked-up |ands. She endorsed an oil pipeline

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- February 4, 2016



with Canada along with noving forward on the current gas
pi peline project. She favored selling land to the private sector
and supported econom c diversification.

8:28:14 PM

TI M BUCKMAN, representing hinself, Houston, Al aska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He said Governor Wal ker's proposal takes
90 percent of the Permanent Fund dividend and is too oppressive
on Al askans, especially the nost vulnerable in the state. He
asserted that the Permanent Fund dividend is the |argest
econom c driver in the state. He set forth that taking away the
Per manent Fund dividend to just support government would be a
direct retraction out of the state's econony.

8:31:11 PM

DON SKINNER, representing hinself, Kenai, Alaska, testified in
opposition of SB 128. He pointed out that past |egislators who
supported using the Permanent Fund for governnent were not re-
el ect ed.

8:33: 09 PM

MARK WGGE N, representing hinmself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 128 with nodifications. He asserted that
| egi sl ators nust do sonmething quickly to bal ance the budget and
the governor's proposal was a good place to start. He said he
was willing to pay income taxes in order to avoid the calanmty
of a budget crisis.

8: 35: 52 PM

DONALD  JOHNSON, representing hi nsel f, Sol dot na, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. He asserted that the state's
budget was too hi gh and spendi ng nust be cut.

8:39:17 PM

CRAI G DOUG.AS, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, did not
provide a position on SB 128. He suggested tourism be taxed and
spendi ng restructured, but cautioned that strictly naking cuts
coul d have negative econom c ram fications. He proposed limting
the Pernmanent Fund dividend for a short period of tine to help
the state get ahead.

8:.42: 04 PM

JOHN TACKETT, representing hinmself, Wsilla, Alaska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He opined that spending on the proposed
gas pipeline has caused budgetary problens. He recommended that
non-resident workers pay an inconme tax and that the Permanent
Fund di vi dend be conti nued.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 4, 2016



8:45: 04 PM

JOHN STRASENBURGH, representing hinself, Talkeetna, Alaska, did
not provide a position on SB 128. He said spending on nega-
projects should be halted, government spending cuts should be
judicious and tax revenue sources should be explored. He read a
st at enent from his wfe, Ruth  Wod, which echoed his
recommendati ons wi thout a position declaration on SB 128.

8:48: 31 PM

ROGER COPE, representing hinself, Fairbanks, Al aska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He said Al aska's budget was too high
per capita and using the Permanent Fund for governnent spending
woul d bankrupt the state. He asserted that the Pernmanent Fund
should be protected and governnent spending reduced. He
suggested that the private sector be allowed and encouraged to
devel op the state's natural resources for added revenue.

8:49:42 PM

SHELLY FINKLER, representing herself, Eagle R ver, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. She said she questioned the
Per manent Fund being the first piece of |egislation considered
as a source of revenue. She asserted that the Permanent Fund
system be kept the way it is for future generations. She opined
that SB 128 is an unfair form of taxation where the poor are
di sproportionally inpacted. She suggested that an incone tax and
dividend tax be incone-based. She summarized that spending
shoul d be cut and taxes on oil conpani es reexam ned.

8:52: 39 PM
ANDREE  MCLEAQD, representing herself, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 128. She remarked that SB 128 is a
raid on the Permanent Fund and inplied that the bill's crafting
was not a transparent process. She asserted that state spending
nmust be cut.

8:55:19 PM

MARY BI SHOP, representing herself, Anchorage, Alaska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. She stated that SB 128 lacks in
explainability and was nore susceptible to the |aw of unintended
consequences. She suggested that the commttee consider other
pl ans, but to keep an open mnd on the governor's plan as well.
She said she does not mnd a reduction in the amount of her
Per manent Fund dividend, but does not want the dividend to go
away. She proposed that the Permanent Fund dividends in the
future should better reflect the state's fiscal condition at
that tine. She asserted that stabilizing the state's inconme was

SENATE STA COW TTEE -25- February 4, 2016



nore inportant than an individual's dividend. She suggested that
sin taxes and notor-fuel taxes be raised. She stated that she
does not support an inconme tax at this time, but a luxury tax
m ght be considered. She proposed that municipalities should be
encouraged to use sales taxes as conpensation for |ost
muni ci pal -sharing dollars. She recommended that the Legislature
find a way to get school funding dollars from the residents of
t he Unor gani zed Bor ough.

8:58: 23 PM

BILL SEITZ, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in opposition of SB 128. He suggested that the Pernmanent Fund
di vidend be set at $1,500 for five years and then reeval uated.
He said any taxes should have a five-year sunset. He advised
that inflation-proofing be reduced due to low inflation |evels.
He recomrended that the state's nmega-projects be elimnated.

9: 00: 02 PM

MERRI CK PI ERCE, representing hinself, Fairbanks, Al aska, did not
provide a position on SB 128. He recomended that governnment cut
spending and oil production taxes be reviewed. He asserted that
the state's wunfunded public enployee retirenment obligations
continue to grow and wll likely be discharged through
bankr upt cy.

9:01: 53 PM
CHAIR STOLTZE thanked the public for its participation and
testi nony.

[SB 128 was held in comm ttee.]
9:03:45 PM
There being no further business to cone before the conmttee

Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Commttee at
9:03 p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 26- February 4, 2016



